Public Document Pack

County Offices
Newland
Lincoln
LN1 1YL
11 April 2018
Lincolnshire Schools' Forum
A meeting of the Lincolnshire Schools' Forum will be held on Thursday, 19 April 2018
at 1.00 pm in Committee Room One, County Offices, Newland, Lincoln LN1 1YL
for the transaction of the business set out on the attached Agenda.
Yours sincerely

Richard Wills
Head of Paid Service
Membership of the Lincolnshire Schools' Forum
SCHOOLS' MEMBERS
Nursery (1)
Joanne Noble (Head Teacher, Gainsborough Nursery School)
Special (2)
Steve Barnes (The Pilgrim School, Lincoln)
Nigel Sisley JP (Governor, St Francis Community Special School, Lincoln)
Primary Maintained (7)
Primary Head Teachers (4)
Gavin Booth (Head Teacher, Boston St Thomas' C E Primary School) - CHAIRMAN
Martin Kyle (Head Teacher, St Faith & St Martin C E Junior School, Lincoln
Ian Randall (Head Teacher, Reepham C E Primary School)
1 vacancy
Primary Governors (3)
Marilyn Bell (Governor, The Fenland Federation)
Anthony Stevens (Governor, The Holt Primary School, Skellingthorpe)
James Todd (Governor, Woodlands Infant and Nursery School, Lincoln)

Secondary Maintained (1)
Michele Anderson (Head Teacher, Spalding High School)
Academies (11)
Secondary Academies (7)
David Bennett (Governor, Queen Elizabeth's Grammar School, Horncastle)
Professor Ken Durrands CBE (Governor, The King's School, Grantham)
Caroline Saxelby (Head Teacher, Walton Girls' High School and Sixth Form, Grantham)
David Scott (Head Teacher, Kesteven & Grantham Girls' School, Grantham)
James Storr (Governor, The Deepings School, Deeping St James)
Ian Widdows (Head Teacher, Giles Academy, Old Leake)
Mark Woods (Chief Executive Officer, Stamford Welland Academy)
Primary Academies (4)
Mark Anderson (Primary Academies)
Helen Hilton (Head Teacher, Little Gonerby Church of England Infant School)
2 vacancies
Special Academy (1)
Lea Mason (Executive Head Teacher, Lincolnshire Wolds Federation, Louth) - VICECHAIRMAN
Alternative Provision Academy (1)
Josh Greaves (Chief Operating Officer, Wellspring Academy Trust)

NON-SCHOOLS' MEMBERS
Faith Groups (1)
Bridget Starling (Church of England)
Providers of 16 to 19 Education (1)
Martin Shelton (Linkage Community Trust)
Staff Trade Unions (1)
Helen Stokes (UNISON)
Early Years Providers (1)
Julia Merivale (Trinity Day Nursery, Gainsborough)

LINCOLNSHIRE SCHOOLS' FORUM AGENDA
THURSDAY, 19 APRIL 2018
Item

Title

Pages

1

Apologies for Absence/Replacement Members

2

Declarations of Members' Interests

3

Minutes of the Lincolnshire Schools'Forum Meeting held on
18 January 2018

5 - 10

4

Chairman's Announcements

Verbal
Report

5

Analysis of the impact of the National Funding Formula
(To receive a report from Elizabeth Bowes, Strategic Finance
Manager, Schools Finance Team, which provides the Forum with
an analysis of the impact of the implementation of the national
funding formula for primary and secondary maintained schools
and academies in 2018/19)

11 - 16

6

Annual Report on Special Educational Needs and Disabilities
(SEND)
(To receive a report from Sheridan Dodsworth, Children's
Services Manager, Special Educational Needs and Disabilities,
(SEND), which provides the Forum with an annual update on
Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) as required
by the Schools' Forum Regulations)

17 - 34

7

Annual Report on Early Years
(To receive a report from Michelle Andrews, Children's Services
Manager, Early Years, which provides the Forum with the Annual
Report for Early Years and information on the delivery and
performance of Early Years and Childcare across Lincolnshire)

35 - 50

8

Team Around the Child (TAC)
(To receive a report from Paula Whitehead, Team Manager,
Team Around the Child, Young Carers and Troubled Families,
which provides the Forum with an update on Team Around the
Child (TAC) in Lincolnshire)

51 - 54

9

Academies and Trust Update
(To receive a report by John O'Connor, Children's Service
Manager, Education Support, which provides information on the
latest number of academies, pupils in academies and academy
trusts)

55 - 58

10

Lincolnshire Schools' Forum Work Programme
(This item provides the Schools' Forum with an opportunity to
discuss potential items for future meetings for inclusion in the
Work Programme)

59 - 62

Democratic Services Officer Contact Details
Name:

Katrina Cope

Direct Dial

01522 552104

E Mail Address

katrina.cope@lincolnshire.gov.uk

Please note: for more information about any of the following please contact
the Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting




Business of the meeting
Any special arrangements
Copies of reports

Contact details set out above.
All papers for council meetings are available on:
www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/committeerecords

Agenda Item 3
1

LINCOLNSHIRE SCHOOLS' FORUM
18 JANUARY 2018
PRESENT: GAVIN BOOTH (CHAIRMAN)
Joanne Noble (Headteacher, Gainsborough Nursery School), Nigel Sisley JP
(Governor, St Francis Community Special School, Lincoln), Marilyn Bell (Governor,
The Fenland Federation), Anthony Stevens (Governor, The Holt Primary School,
Skellingthorpe), Ian Randall (Head Teacher, Reepham Church of England Primary
School), Martin Kyle (Head Teacher, St Faith and St Martin's Junior School), James
Todd (Chair of Governors, Woodlands Infant & Nursery School, Lincoln), Professor
Ken Durrands CBE (Governor, The King's School, Grantham), James Storr
(Governor, The Deepings School), David Bennett (Governor, Horncastle Queen
Elizabeth's Grammar School), Ian Widdows (Head Teacher, Giles Academy, Old
Leake), Mark Anderson, Caroline Saxelby (Head Teacher, Walton Girls' High School
and Sixth Form), David Scott (Head Teacher, Kesteven and Grantham Girls' School),
Lea Mason (Executive Head Teacher, Lincolnshire Wolds Federation, Louth), Julia
Merivale (Manager, Trinity Day Nursery) and Ken Rustidge.
Officers in attendance:Michelle Andrews (Service Manager Early Years and Childcare Support), Elizabeth
Bowes (Strategic Finance Manager, Schools Finance Team), Eileen McMorrow
(Senior Project Officer Specialist Schools Project), Mark Popplewell (Head of Finance
(Children's Services)), Heather Sandy (Chief Commissioning Officer for Learning),
Suzanne Scott (Ellison Boulters CE Academy), Tony Warnock (Operations and
Financial Advice Manager) and Catherine Wilman (Democratic Services Officer).
32

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE/REPLACEMENT MEMBERS

Apologies were received from:
Josh Greaves – Alternative Provision Academy;
Bridget Starling – Faith Groups;
Helen Stokes – Staff Trade Unions.
It was noted that Ken Rustidge was present in place of Helen Stokes as her
substitute.
33

DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS

There were no declarations.
34

MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF THE LINCOLNSHIRE SCHOOLS'
FORUM

Page 5

2
LINCOLNSHIRE SCHOOLS' FORUM
18 JANUARY 2018
35

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 4 OCTOBER 2017

It was noted that under the item Future Meeting Dates, the final date should read
Thursday, 11 October 2018 and not Wednesday as printed in the minutes.
RESOLVED
That the subject to the amendment, the minutes of the meeting held on 4
October 2017 be approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.
35a
Minutes of the extra-ordinary meeting held on 11 December 2017
RESOLVED
That the minutes of the meeting held on 11 December 2017 be approved and
signed by the Chairman as a correct record.
36

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman was saddened to announce the passing of Terl Bryant who had been
chairman of the Lincolnshire Schools Forum for many, many years until October
2014.
It was noted that the Vice Chairman of the Forum had been required to step down as
a change in her role meant she no longer qualified as a member of the Forum.
As such, members were invited to nominate a new Vice Chairman. The Chair
expressed to the Forum that the role was rewarding and helpful support was provided
by relevant Local Authority officers when undertaking the role.
RESOLVED
That Lea Mason, (Special Academy) be elected as Vice Chairman of the
Lincolnshire Schools' Forum.
37

SCHOOL FUNDING ARRANGEMENTS 2018/19

A report presented by Elizabeth Bowes, Strategic Finance Manager, was considered
which briefed the Forum on the school funding arrangements for 2018/19, including
announcements on the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG), school grants for 2018/19
and School Budget Shares for 2018/19. The report outlined the approval made by
the Lead Member to replicate the national funding formula in 2018/19 ensuring
schools allocations were on a sensible trajectory for the move towards the hard
formula in 2020/21. The Local Authority was working towards the publication of
mainstream school budgets by the 28 February 2018, in line with the regulations.
In line with the DfE Regulations, the Forum was required to approve a number of
centrally held budgets in the Schools block and Central Schools Services block for
2018/19.

Page 6

3
LINCOLNSHIRE SCHOOLS' FORUM
18 JANUARY 2018

The Forum approved the following budgets for 2018/19;
Schools Block
 Funding for significant pre-16 growth (£2.000m);
Central School Services Block ongoing commitments
 Places in independent schools for non-SEN pupils (Stamford Endowed
schools) (£0.054m);
 Admissions (£0.506m);
 LA Retained duties for all schools (£1.530m);
 Servicing of the Schools Forum (£0.020m);
Central School Services Block historical commitments
 Schools Broadband (£1.350m);
 Private Finance Initiative (£1.180m)
Officers responded to questions and clarification on certain issues. The Forum was
in agreement with the proposed budgets in tables 2, 3 and 4 of the report.
The Local Authority had taken the decision not to recoup funding for staturoty duties
relating to maintained schools only in 2018/19. The Local Authority would keep this
decision under review.
RESOLVED
That the Local Authority's proposals relating to Funding for significant pre-16
growth; Places in independent schools for non-SEN pupils (Stamford Endowed
Schools); Admissions, LA Retained duties for all schools, servicing of the
Schools Forum, Schools Broadband and PFI be agreed.
38

EARLY YEARS NATIONAL FUNDING FORMULA

Consideration was given to a report from Mark Popplewell, Head of Finance which
provided a summary of the early years funding formula for 2018/19. The Local
Authority confirmed the local universal hourly rate for 2018/19 to be £3.84 per pupil,
an increase of £0.02 per pupil per hour from 2017/18. The 2018/19 local universal
rate would apply to the 15 hours early years entitlement and the additional 15 hours
for eligible working families.
The Local Authority outlined its intentions to review the mandatory deprivation factor
for 2019/20.
The Government required the Schools Forum to agree central spend for early years
by the 28 February 2018. In light of these regulations the following budgets required
schools forum approval.


Early Years Entitlement Team (£273.473);

Page 7

4
LINCOLNSHIRE SCHOOLS' FORUM
18 JANUARY 2018





Securing Sufficient Child Care (£368,169);
SEND Local Office (£58,838);
Sector Quality Improvement advice and Moderation of Early years
Foundation Stage Profiles (£468,277);
Workforce and Training Requirements for the Sector (£310,876).

During discussion of the report, the following points were noted:






The 15 hours of care was universal for all families, however the extended
provision was only for eligible families. Take-up was being monitored by the
service;
£8.151 million has been provided to Lincolnshire to fund the extra places for
families eligible for 30 hour provision in 2018/19;
Early years settings classed as requires improvement by OFSTED would
continue to be funded for children already in the provision, however new
places would not be funded until there was evidence demonstrating an
improvement;
It was felt the government's consultation on the funding of the 30 hours
extended offer had not been conducted well and early years providers feel that
funding levels should be increased at a national level.

The centrally retained budgets represented 4.51% of the overall early years funding,
therefore meeting the required pass-through threshold of at least 95% to providers.
The disadvantaged 2 year old funding would continue at the same hourly rate of
£4.85 per hour in 2018/19.
RESOLVED
1.
2.

39

That the Local Authority's proposals to centrally retained funding be
agreed;
That the report be noted.

BUILDING COMMUNITIES OF SPECIALIST PROVISION: A
COLLABORATIVE STRATEGY FOR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE
WITH SEND IN LINCOLNSHIRE

The Forum considered a report which presented A Collaborative Strategy for
Children and Young People with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND)
in Lincolnshire.
There were large areas within the county with a shortfall of SEND places with pupils
currently travelling as much as 90 minutes to 2 hours one way for a place. This was
having a big impact on pupils and their families.

Page 8

5
LINCOLNSHIRE SCHOOLS' FORUM
18 JANUARY 2018

The Strategy outlined a proposed vision for pupils with SEND in Lincolnshire which
would see a collaborative system of existing schools, in four localities within the
county that could meet most special educational needs and disabilities by being
designated "all needs" and taking pupils of all ages.
In addition, a new special school would be created to meet the demand for places.
This was most likely to be located in Lincoln, where the need was greatest.
During discussion, the following points were noted:







The proposal had been under discussion for two years;
The model would address transport so that children would be able to
attend their nearest school;
Capital investment would be required;
The model sought joint and collaborative working between all parties.
The development of satellite sites would require an element of
overstaffing. Recruitment for special schools for proving successful;
The schools which would host the satellite sites had not yet been
identified, however it was fairly certain there would be one in the Skegness
area.

RESOLVED
That the report and contents be noted.
40

SPECIAL SCHOOLS FUNDING FORMULA UPDATE

A report from Mark Popplewell, Head of finance, was considered which provided an
update on the special schools funding formula for 2018/19.
The Local Authority outlined its intention to consult on a revised funding formula for
2018/19, which would shortly be released. The Local Authority believed the
underlying principles of the formula were strong and fit for purpose, and therefore did
not require a fundamental change, however it was recognised some additions and
amendments to the formula were necessary to ensure the appropriate level of
resources continued to be allocated to special schools. A number of refinements to
the formula included: revision to the bands and descriptors and lump sum funding,
and updated place number and pupil moderations.
RESOLVED
That the report be noted.
41

LINCOLNSHIRE LEARNING PARTNERSHIP - FUNDING PROPOSAL
2018/19

The Forum considered a report which detailed a proposal by the Lincolnshire
Learning Partnership for additional funding for the 2018/19 and 2019/20 financial
years.

Page 9

6
LINCOLNSHIRE SCHOOLS' FORUM
18 JANUARY 2018
The Lincolnshire Learning Partnership Board (LLPB) was a strategic board of
Lincolnshire head teachers who alongside colleagues from the Council and the
Diocese of Lincoln represented a partnership of over 360 Lincolnshire schools and
academies.
The report provided details of a £0.5m request of funding in 2018/19, and a further
£0.5m in 2019/20from available DSG underspends to support the continuation of the
sector-led approach to school improvement through a detailed programme of work.
Members of the Forum felt that value for money needed to be achieved through this
programme, which the LLP representatives agreed with. Members also expressed
that the programme had a sustaining impact on school improvement in Lincolnshire.
Whilst funding for sector-led improvement had been secured for two further years
from the DSG underspend, the sector would be required to pool resources
themselves to support sector-led improvements from 2020/21 to make the
programme sustainable.
RESOLVED
1.
2.

42

That the content of the report be noted;
That the Local Authority's proposal to fund sector-led school improvement
activity in 2018/19 and 2019/20 of £0.5m pa from available DSG
underspends brought forward, be supported.
ACADEMIES AND TRUST UPDATE

The Forum considered a report which provided information on the latest number of
academies, pupils in academies and academy trusts.
RESOLVED
That the report be noted.
43

LINCOLNSHIRE SCHOOLS' FORUM - WORK PROGRAMME

The Forum considered its programme of work for forthcoming meetings. It was noted
that an item relating to the Outreach Service should be added to the programme for
the June 2018 meeting.
RESOLVED
That the work programme be noted.
The meeting closed at 2.50 pm

Page 10

Agenda Item 5

Regulatory and Other Committee
Open Report on behalf of Debbie Barnes, Executive Director Children's
Services
Report to:

Lincolnshire Schools' Forum

Date:

19 April 2018
Analysis of the impact of the National Funding
Formula
No

Subject:
Decision
Reference:
Key
decision?
Summary:

The purpose of this report is to provide the Schools Forum with an analysis of
the impact of the implementation of the national funding formula for primary and
secondary maintained schools and academies in 2018/19.
Recommendation(s):
1. To note the contents of the report
Background
On 17 September 2017, the government announced the implementation of the national
funding formula (NFF) for schools in 2018/19.
The Local Authority (LA) consulted with all mainstream schools and academies in
Lincolnshire on the proposal to replicate the NFF in 2018/19, ensuring school's allocations
were on a sensible trajectory towards the move to a 'hard' formula from 2020/21.
An extraordinary meeting of the Schools Forum was held on 11 December 2017 where
members supported the LA's funding formula proposals for 2018/19 and the direction of
travel.
A report was tabled at Children and Young Peoples Scrutiny Committee Meeting on 1
December 2017 on the consultation findings, and the proposed 2018/19 funding formula
and direction of travel for the committee's consideration, of which they supported, before
being approved by the Executive Councillor through the LA decision making process.
The LA submitted on the 23 January 2018 the DfE's Authority Proforma Tool (APT) for
mainstream schools for 2018/19 that uses October 2017 pupil census data. This tool is
used to determine school budget allocations. The DfE approved Lincolnshire's 2018/19
funding formula in accordance with the DfE's finance regulations on 8 February 2018.
Budgets for primary and secondary schools were published on 28 February 2018.
Analysis of the impact of the implementation of the NFF
Under the NFF, the LA implemented the below:

Page 11

1. Adoption of the government's minimum funding level in 2018/19 of £3,300 for
primary schools and £4,600 for secondary schools within the funding formula.
2. Adoption of the government's proposal of a 0% Minimum Funding Guarantee
(MFG) per pupil in 2018/19.
3. Adoption of the government's funding floor proposal for all schools to see a
minimum gain of 0.5% of their baseline pupil-led funding in 2018/19.
4. Adoption of the governments percentage cap in pupil-led funding of the maximum
of either 3% gain on their transitional protection baseline or 20% of their remaining
gains in 2018/19.
Tables A to D provide an analysis of the impact of the NFF. For the purpose of this
analysis the 2017/18 baseline used to calculate the impact of the NFF is based on the LA
baseline - it does not include additional funding received by academies from the ESfA for
the additional responsibilities of being an academy.
Table A details the impact of the NFF for the primary sector based on a 0% MFG, 0.5%
funding floor, and the maximum of either 3% ceiling cap or 20% of their remaining gains.
Table A:
Primary
Range of
Difference
0.50%
0.51% - 0.99%
1.00% - 1.49%
1.50% - 1.99%
2.00% - 2.49%
2.50% - 2.99%
3% and above
Total

NOR
0-50

NOR
51100

NOR
101200

NOR
201300

NOR
301400

NOR
401500

NOR
501650

3
0
1
5
0
1
61
71

2
2
0
0
0
1
76
81

2
0
0
0
0
1
54
57

1
0
0
0
0
0
30
31

1
0
0
0
0
0
17
18

0
0
0
0
0
0
8
8

3
0
0
0
1
2
8
14

% of
Schools
4.29%
0.71%
0.36%
1.79%
0.36%
1.79%
90.71%
100.00%

Table B details the impact of the NFF for the secondary sector based on a 0% MFG, 0.5%
funding floor, and the maximum of either 3% ceiling cap or 20% of their remaining gains.
Table B:
Secondary
Range of
Difference
0.50%
0.51% - 0.99%
1.00% - 1.49%
1.50% - 1.99%
2.00% - 2.49%
2.50% - 2.99%
3%
Total

NOR

NOR

NOR

NOR
701-850

NOR
8511200

NOR
12012000

100-400

401-550

551-700

6
0
0
1
2
1
0
10

1
0
1
0
0
1
7
10

0
0
0
1
1
0
8
10

0
0
0
0
0
0
5
5

0
0
0
0
0
1
15
1

0
0
0
0
0
0
4
4

% of
Schools
12.73%
0.00%
1.82%
3.64%
5.45%
5.45%
70.91%
100.00%

Tables C and D detail the impact of the NFF for the primary and secondary sector if the
NFF was implemented in full with no ceiling cap. The variations in funding levels across
the country have inevitably resulted in winners and losers as a result of the formula. The

Page 12

government has therefore applied funding floors (i.e. no schools will lose funding from the
national funding formula implementation during the two year soft period), however the
government has had to apply a cap to those gaining to compensate this to ensure the
overall Schools block budget at a national level remains affordable. There will be a redistribution of funding taking place across the country, however the MFG (which ensures
manageable per pupil reductions in funding are applied) will be in operation, therefore a
number of gaining schools may take a number of years before being funded on the
national funding formula rates fully. For those schools who are losing funding, they will
receive protection through the funding floor of a +0.5% in 2018/19 and 2019/20. Any
negative per pupil funding change would be subject to protection through the application of
the MFG in future years. To protect schools from significant budget reductions, the MFG
ensures that no school loses more than a certain percentage per pupil compared to its
prior year per pupil budget. A negative MFG allows school budget reductions to be set in a
more sustainable way.
Table C:
NOR
NOR
NOR
NOR
NOR
NOR
Primary Schools NOR
Range of
1012013014015010-50 51-100
200
300
400
500
650
Difference
0
1
0
1
1
0
0
< (5.01%)
2
1
1
1
0
0
0
(-5.0%) - (2.5%)
0
0
0
0
0
1
0
(2.49%) - (0.01%)
2
7
3
0
0
0
0
0% - 2.5%
2
7
7
6
2
1
0
2.51% - 5.0%
0
12
24
9
7
5
1
5.01% - 7.5%
0
5
25
31
15
6
6
7.51% - 10.0%
0
6
16
9
5
5
1
10.01% - 12.5%
0
10
5
0
1
0
0
12.51% - 15.0%
1
11
0
0
0
0
0
15.01% - 17.5%
1
10
0
0
0
0
0
17.51% - 20.0%
5
1
0
0
0
0
0
20.01% - 30.0%
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
Above 30.01%
14
71
81
57
31
18
8
Total
9 schools would lose if the NFF were implemented in full, while 279 would gain.
Table D:
Secondary
Range of
Difference
< (5.01%)
(-5.0%) - (2.5%)
(2.49%) - (0.01%)
0% - 2.5%
2.51% - 5.0%
5.01% - 7.5%
7.51% - 10.0%
10.01% - 12.5%
12.51% - 15.0%
Above 15.01%
Total

NOR

NOR

NOR

NOR

100-400

401-550

551-700

701-850

3
1
2
3
1
0
0
0
0
0
10

0
1
0
1
3
2
3
0
0
0
10

0
0
0
2
1
2
3
2
0
0
10

0
0
0
0
1
2
1
1
0
0
5

Page 13

NOR
8511200

NOR
12012000

0
0
0
0
1
10
1
1
2
1
16

0
0
0
0
0
1
2
1
0
0
4

% of
Schools
3.2%
schools
losing

96.8%
schools
gaining

% of
Schools
12.7%
schools
losing

87.3%
schools
gaining

7 schools would lose if the NFF were implemented in full, while 48 would gain.
It is important to note that for those primary and secondary schools that would lose funding
through the implementation of the NFF, they were already in receipt of the MFG under the
previous funding formula methodology, and were planning for reductions in per pupil
funding.

Local Authority Observations
From the above analysis it is clear to see that the introduction of the NFF has been
positive for the majority of Lincolnshire schools.
Officers will continue to review and respond to government publications on the NFF for
2019/20 and beyond. This will include those matters that remain outstanding – ceiling cap
and MFG arrangements after 2019/20. The LA is also contributing to the DfE's work on
the introduction of a formulaic formula factor for mobility and growth.
The government's current funding cycle is to 2019/20, therefore funding levels beyond
that will be subject to decisions made by the government at the next funding cycle, which
will set schools overall funding levels.
Through the implementation of the NFF, Notional SEN allocations have increased,
therefore during the summer of 2018, the LA will undertake a review of the Targeted
element of High Needs funding.

Consultation
a) Have Risks and Impact Analysis been carried out??
No
b) Risks and Impact Analysis
N/A
Appendices
These are listed below and attached at the back of the report
Appendix A
None
Background Papers
Document title
School
Funding
Arrangements

Where the document can be viewed
http://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=166&MI
d=5160&Ver=4

Page 14

2018/19
National
Funding
Formula for
Schools

http://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=166&MI
d=5194&Ver=4

This report was written by Lizzie Bowes, who can be contacted on 01522 554905
or elizabeth.bowes@lincolnshire.gov.uk.

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

Regulatory and Other Committee
Open Report on behalf of Debbie Barnes
Report to:

Lincolnshire Schools' Forum

Date:

19 April 2018
Annual Report on Special Educational Needs and
Disabilities (SEND)
No

Subject:
Decision
Reference:
Key
decision?
Summary:

The purpose of this report is to provide the Schools' Forum with an annual
update on Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) as required by
the Schools' Forum Regulations. The report covers:
An update on activity within the county.
An overview of the high needs costs throughout 2017/18.
An update on the SEND Strategy Review.
An introduction to the SEND Tribunal Single Route of Redress.

Recommendation(s):
To note the contents of the report and direct any questions to the officers in
attendance.

Background
Part 3 of the Children and Families Act 2014 aligns and ‘streamlines’ the system of
SEN assessment, support and provision for children and young people 0-25,
bringing together the provisions of a variety of Acts covering education, health and
care as well as introducing new provisions, statutory implementation of associated
duties, regulations and a new SEND Code of Practice.
The SEND Reforms set out in the Act include:
i.
Extending the SEND system from birth to 25, giving children, young people
and their parents/carers greater control and choice in decisions about
provision;
ii.
Replacing Statements and Learning Difficulties Assessments (LDA) with a
birth-to-25 Education, Health and Care (EHC) Plan;

Page 17

iii.
iv.
v.

vi.

Offering families the option of personal budgets when an EHC plan is
implemented;
Improving co-operation between all the services and requiring particularly
local authorities (LA) and health authorities (HA) to work together;
Requiring LAs to involve children, young people and parents in reviewing
and developing provision for those with special educational needs and to
publish a ‘local offer’ of support; and
Publication of a new SEN Code of Practice and regulations covering the
work of early years providers, schools and post-16 education providers, LAs
and HAs.

There is a sharper focus on the measurable outcomes for Children and Young
People. It is expected that the majority of children with SEND will have their needs
met and outcomes achieved through mainstream education provision and will not
need EHC Plans. These are explicit themes running throughout the SEND Code of
Practice 2015.
Parents and young people must be involved directly in discussions and decisions
about the support available to them individually and more strategically, particularly
through the ‘co-production’ and delivery of the SEND assessment, the EHC
planning process and the Local Offer.
Each stage of the EHC Needs Assessment process is subject to appeal to the
Special Educational Needs and Disability Tribunal and in some cases the Local
Government Ombudsman.
A child or young person has special educational needs (SEN) if they have a
learning difficulty or disability which calls for special educational provision to be
made for him or her.
The National Context
In January 2017 the number of pupils in England with SEND had increased from
1,228,785 in January 2016 to 1,244,255. This was the first annual increase since
2010 but the percentage of pupils with SEND remained at 14.4% of the total pupil
population.
In January 2017 there were 242,185 pupils in England that had an Education,
Health and Care (EHC) Plan or Statement of SEN; an increase of 5,380 from
January 2016. Despite the increase this figure remains equal to 2.8% of the total
pupil population and has been the case since 2007.
In January 2017 a further 1,002,070 pupils were on SEN Support. This is equal
to11.6% of the total pupil population and remained unchanged from 2016.

Page 18

The context in Lincolnshire
In Lincolnshire in January 2017 there were 105,806 pupils on roll in Lincolnshire
maintained and academy schools; of these 15.9% were in receipt of some form of
provision for their Special Educational Needs. This is higher than the England
average of 14.4%.
Breakdown of Support accessed by % of Total Census Population

Type of Support
No SEND
SEN Support
Statement & EHC Plan

% of Total Census Population
84.1% (All England - 85.6%)
13.0% (All England -11.6%)
2.9% (All England - 2.8%)
Source: January 2017 Schools Census

In Lincolnshire in January 2018 the position was:







4,560 children and young people (0-25) with a Statement or EHC Plan.
This is a 16% increase from January 2017 and a 38% increase overall
since the implementation of the SEND reforms in September 2014 when
there were 3,300 Statements of SEN.
1,751 young people were placed in a maintained or academy Special
School. This is a 3.4% increase from January.
86 young people were in Non-maintained Independent Special Schools.
Of these, 50 were in residential settings with 17 young people in a 52
week placement
42 children and young people were in Independent Mainstream Schools

Page 19







660 young people were in general Further Education or Sixth Form
college; an increase of 21.5% from 2017
154 young people were in Specialist Post 16 settings; of these 53 were
in Independent Specialist provision with 2 young people in 52 week
residential placements
30 young people were undertaking Traineeships, Supported Internships
or Apprenticeships which is one less than there was in January 2016
18 young people were Electively Home Educated

In January 2018, 21% of all children and young people with Statements or EHC
Plans were educated in settings that are not reported on in the School Census.
(CIPFA 2017/18). This number includes those young people that are in Early
Years, Further Education, Independent and other Post 16 settings. There has been
an increase of 2% since January 2017 largely as a result of the growing number of
young adults (20 – 25) with EHC Plans.
The age breakdown for young people with an EHC Plan in January 2018 was:
•
•
•
•
•

0 - 5 years
5 - 10 years
11 - 15 years
16 - 19 years
20 - 25 years

172 - an increase of 25% from 2017 (4% of all EHC Plans)
1448 - an increase of 20% from 2017 (31% of all EHC plans)
1581 - an increase of 4% from 2017 (35% of all EHC Plans)
1215 - an increase of 24% from 2017 (27% of all EHC Plans)
144 - an increase of 103% from 2017 (3% of all EHC Plans)

Nationally, Statements or EHC plans are most prevalent at age 15, where 3.8% of
pupils have a statement or EHC plan. In Lincolnshire the percentage of 15 year
olds with a Statement or EHC Plan is 4.1%, higher than the England average.
(Source: School Census January 2017)
Lincolnshire's largest cohort of pupils with an EHC Plan is those aged 11 to 16
(52.4% of all Plans). In Lincolnshire there is generally an incremental rise in the
numbers of pupils with an EHC Plan in each age group from 3 to 16 and then
numbers drop with a sharp decline from age 20 to 24. (Source: School Census
January 2017)
SEND remains more prevalent in boys than girls. 14.6% of boys in England are on
SEN support compared to 8.1% of girls. In Lincolnshire 16.3% of boys are on SEN
Support compared to 9.7% of girls. In England 4.0% of boys have a statement or
EHC plan compared to 1.6% girls. In Lincolnshire this figure is 4.2% for boys and
1.6% for girls. (Source: School Census January 2017).

Page 20

Top 3 Primary Needs broken down by type of support received

Type of Need

SEN Support

Moderate Learning
Difficulties
Specific Learning Difficulties
Autistic Spectrum Disorder
Social, Emotional & Mental
Health
Other SEN

29.7%

EHC Plan &
Statement
17.1%

17.8%
6.7%
14.6%

5.3%
22.4%
15.4%

31.2%

39.9%
Source: January 2017 Schools Census

Lincolnshire is consistent with the national trend of MLD as the most commonly
identified primary need overall. However, Lincolnshire is higher in overall
percentage of pupils with MLD at SEN Support; 29.7% compared to 25.2% of all
pupils with SEN Support for MLD nationally. In England the percentage of pupils
with MLD decreased from 24.2% in January 2016 to 22.7% January 2017. In
Lincolnshire it decreased by 3.3% from 33% in January 2016.
Nationally the most commonly identified primary need for those with an EHC Plan
is ASD (26.9% - an increase from January 2016 when it was 25.9%). In
Lincolnshire ASD is now also the most commonly identified primary need for pupils
with an EHC Plan (22.4%). This is a slight rise from January 2016, when it was
22%, but is lower than the England average. There has been a shift in Lincolnshire
as MLD has, for many years, accounted for the highest percentage of pupils with a
Statement or EHC Plan. In January 2017 there was a significant drop of 8.9% from
26% in January 2016.

Page 21

Number of pupils with SEN Support or a statement / EHC Plan by District

District
Boston
East Lindsey
Lincoln
North Kesteven
South Holland
South Kesteven
West Lindsey

SEN Support
17.9%
14.0%
14.6%
10.3%
13.8%
11.4%
12.7%

Statement or EHC Plan
2.3%
3.5%
3.4%
2.8%
2.9%
2.5%
3.4%

All figures shown as a % of district population
Source: Schools Census January 2017 / Lincs Geographical Information System

•

East Lindsey has the highest percentage of pupils with a Statement or EHC
Plan

•

South Kesteven has the lowest percentage of pupils with a Statement or
EHC Plan

•

Boston has the highest percentage of children and young people with SEN
Support

•

North Kesteven and South Kesteven have the lowest proportion of pupils
with SEN

This distribution has remained broadly consistent since 2014.

Page 22

Schools' Funding for pupils with SEND
Schools and Academies for the 2017/18 financial year had, through most of their
formula factors, a notional SEN funding allocation from which they were expected
to contribute the first £6,000 towards a pupil who requires SEN Support/Graduated
Approach. The higher level needs (top up funding) and targeted support provision
remained outside of this notional SEN funding and is funded through the high
needs budget.

High Needs Funding Analysis (not including short-term medical provision)
All EHC Plans have been issued in accordance with the evidence provided by
schools and other contributing agencies.
The table below highlights the total funding allocated in 2015/16, 2016/17 and
2017/18 (to date) for learners with high level needs who attend mainstream
schools and academies.
NB. The 2017/18 figures below only include agreements entered onto the SEND system by the end
of December 2017. The update, which will be undertaken in June 2017, will capture any outstanding
information for 17/18 commitments and is likely to result in an increase in the figures below.

Financial Year
2017/18
2016/17
2015/16

Top Up
Funding
£9,660,906
£9,035,095
£7,897,454

Targeted
£2,080,628
£1,721,191
£1,394,787

Recoupment
£484,363
£311,437
£375,880

Total
£12,225,897
£11,067,723
£9,668,121

Source: SEND data management/financial system.

The local authority allocated £2.401m in 2015/16 through mainstream schools
formula factors to support fully the first £6,000 of SEN support for those higher
needs learners. The costs identified in the table are the funding delegated to
mainstream schools and academies above this threshold.
The local authority has seen a further growth in top up and targeted funding
delegated in 2017/18, which was anticipated. The local authority responded to this
cost increase through the setting of the 2017/18 budgets.

Requests for Education, Health and Care Needs Assessments
In 2017 the Special Educational Needs and Disability Service received 695
requests for assessments. This was a 15% increase on 2016 and an overall

Page 23

increase of 46% from 2013/14, the year before the implementation of the SEND
reforms. There were 478 new EHC PIans issued with a further 20 still being
assessed at the start of 2018; a decrease from 2016 when 586 new plans were
issued.
The SEND Service issued 95% of new EHC Plans within the statutory timescale of
20 weeks. The most recently published national data indicates that the average
number of EHC Plans finalised within timescale is around 62% (including
exceptions cases which legitimately go beyond the 20 weeks).
In the calendar year 2017 the service made a decision not to undertake a statutory
assessment under S36 of the Children and Families Act 2014 in 27% of cases
referred (187).
The England average for 'refusal to assess' decisions is around 28%. Lincolnshire
is 1% below the national average. Following a series of Tribunals in which the
Local Authority was over-ruled on its decision not to assess, there is caution
against not agreeing to assess, particularly when it hasn't been possible to work
with the family and school to resolve concerns about the child's SEN. The legal test
is relatively low 'A local authority must conduct an assessment of education, health
and care needs when it considers that it may be necessary for special educational
provision to be made for the child or young person in accordance with an EHC plan'
(9.3 SEND Code of Practice 2015). Inevitably, this has resulted in more assessments
that have not concluded with the child being issued with an EHC Plan; the number
doubled from 5 in 2016 to 10 in 2017. This equates to 2% of all children assessed in
2017 and is lower than the most recently published England average of 3.9%.
In 2017 the most common reason for refusal to assess continued to be the lack of
evidence from the child's school of support and intervention strategies provided
through a graduated approach i.e. using resources and support services available
through the notional funding.
Despite the rise in the number of children not being issued with an EHC Plan at the
end of the assessment, it remains the SEND Service's view that fewer children are
refused an EHC Plan than the England average as the focus is on ensuring that
only those with evidence of the range of interventions implemented through the
graduated approach are accepted for assessment. It therefore follows that there is
a strong likelihood that the higher level of support required through an EHC Plan
will be confirmed by the assessment.
New Lincolnshire 'Guidance on SEN Support' to facilitate the graduated approach
is now published on the Local Offer. Detail in Background Papers.

Page 24

There were no requests in 2017 for assessment for an EHC Plan for young people
detained in custody.
Appeals to First Tier Tribunal
In Lincolnshire, as with many authorities, there was a significant rise in the number
of appeals lodged with the SEND Tribunal. In the first year of the reforms (2014/15)
there were 28 appeals lodged; 16 were for refusal to assess. By 2015/16 this rose
to 63 appeals of which 29 were for refusal to assess. The majority of other appeals
were against the content of the EHC Plan and in particular the school identified by
the authority to meet the child's needs. In the academic year 2016/17 there were
45 appeals lodged with the First Tier Tribunal. This is a significant reduction and
equates to 4.25 per 10,000 school population. The last published DfE data showed
the England average Tribunal rate to be 4.3 per 10,000.
The evidence so far this academic year indicates that far more cases are being
resolved through case management. In the first 4 months of the 2017/18 academic
year 16 appeals were lodged.
The number of Mediations has also dropped. In 2016 there were 90 Mediations
commissioned at parental request because of dispute with the authority's decision.
In 2017 the number dropped to 25. This reduction is again attributed to more
intensive work with families to resolve concerns at an earlier stage.
The way in which the service is working has been greatly assisted by the
partnership with the Lincolnshire Parent Carer Forum (LPCF). The LPCF has
supported the authority in understanding parental concerns about why they often
feel that their child must have an EHC Plan. This remains a complex issue but
there is frequently concern expressed by parents that they don't believe their child
will receive the appropriate support without a legally binding document. To attempt
to alleviate concerns, and ensure that children are being supported appropriately at
the SEN Support stage, the Local Authority employed both a Tribunal Officer, to
work with families in trying to resolve issues that are already going to appeal and a
practitioner skilled in restorative practice to work with schools and families to
facilitate a clearer understanding of the child's needs and the support that schools
should provide through a graduated approach. The two posts have been
instrumental in influencing practice and SEND Caseworkers and Practice
Supervisors are now taking on these roles. Relationships with families who are
concerned about the support their child is getting have improved and is, as far as
can be seen, the reason for the reduction in both mediations and appeals.
The legal cost in 2016/17, related primarily to tribunals, was £109,000. In 2017/18
this was £97,800, reflecting the reduction in Tribunal cases. The cost of the
Mediation session is £650 or £850 depending on the provider used. This has been

Page 25

a significant 'hidden' cost as there was no specific budget allocated to this area of
work. Mediation has added a further £133,000 - £150,000 cost to SEND
expenditure in the last three years. The reduction in both Tribunals and Mediations
is advantageous in enhancing relationships with families and in financial terms.

Transition from Statements to EHC Plans

The 31st March 2018 marked the end of the SEND reforms 3.5 year
implementation phase and all Local Authorities had to have transferred all children
and young people with Statements of SEN to the new SEND system if they met the
criteria for an EHC Plan. Data published in March 2018 indicates that nationally
94% of transfers have been completed Lincolnshire SEND teams have achieved
100% compliance with the statutory requirements having, over the last year,
completed the final 970 of 3,300 transfers from Statements of SEN to EHC Plans.

Special Schools
Lincolnshire has 18 special schools across the county meeting a wide range of
needs for children and young people with special educational needs and
disabilities. The number of places agreed with Lincolnshire special schools in
2017/18 was 1,765, which is an overall increase of 56 places from 2016/17. The
number of pupils in Lincolnshire's Special Schools has increased by almost 200 in
the last 4 years.
Following a comprehensive review of Special Schools' pupil banding, which is
defined by the pupils' needs, the Local Authority has worked with Special School
Leaders to review the Special Schools' funding formula with changes taking
effect from April 2018 for 2018/19 following Executive Councillor approval.
Overall, Special Schools' funding has risen by £1.954m from 2017/18 to
£27.731m as a result of the special schools funding formula agreed changes and
place number review (an increase of 23 pupils from 2017/18). The increase in
funding relates to amendments to the pupil bands and descriptors (including the
introduction of 2 new bands for pupils having severe physical and / or sensory
disabilities or other medical conditions resulting in total dependence (despite
mechanical and technological aids), and pupils with a diagnosis of autism
spectrum disorder (ASD) with challenging and undesirable behaviour), and the
pupil moderation process that ensures pupil-led funding is reflected of pupils
needs in the school.

Page 26

This increase in funding will ensure that the appropriate level of resources continue
to be allocated to allow special schools to deploy the resources to best meet the
needs of its pupils in the changing demographics of Lincolnshire special schools.
The funding to meet this additional cost has been budgeted for within the High
Needs block of the Dedicated Schools Grant. The government has committed to
providing a 0.5% funding increase in 2018/19 and 2019/20 to Local Authorities,
therefore providing protection for a minimum of two years, and the expectation that
incremental changes in funding levels will be applied allowing Local Authorities to
manage downward funding changes in a manageable way when protection levels
fall.
Special Schools receive mid-year funding for pupils placed above their agreed
place numbers (£0.318m in 2016/17). It is also important to note that Special
Schools received additional funding of £0.248m in 2016/17 to support them in
maintaining placements that would otherwise have broken down. This funding is inexcess of the pupil-led funding driven through the funding formula and has not
been previously budgeted for. The latest information for 2017/18 currently
highlights in-year adjustments totalling £0.128m and exceptional funding of
£0.360m.
Commissioned arrangements exist with Special Schools for delivering specialist
outreach support, portage and residential placements (£2.195m).

Hospital Schools
Lincolnshire has two hospital schools and the Local Authority commissioned 13
and 70 places respectively in 2017/18. In 2018/19 the authority will commission the
same number of places. The delivery of the 70 place hospital school has been
reviewed with locations throughout the county supporting medical placements
(particularly those pupils with severe anxiety levels that are unable to attend
mainstream provision) referred through the Local Authority gateway. The review
concluded in late 2016/17 an increase in the budget provision of £0.574m for
2017/18. For 2018/19, the budget shares have remained the same, other than a
0.5% settlement increase.

Out of County Placements
Out of County placements are made only when Lincolnshire Schools have stated
that they cannot meet the special educational needs of a particular learner or when
all schools are full. There is a continuing pressure on meeting the needs of those
learners with Autistic Spectrum Disorders or Social, Emotional and Mental Health

Page 27

issues and specifically those with challenging behaviours. Out of county
placements go through a rigorous commissioning process.
Young people with Autistic Spectrum Disorders and Social, Emotional and Mental
Health difficulties make up around 70% of Out of County placements. It continues
to be the case that it is frequently a young person's challenging behaviour that has
led them to be placed in provision outside of Lincolnshire.
The number of Out of County placements has reduced over the last three years; at
one point there were 98 pupils in out of county provision and there are now 88.
However, the costs have risen significantly. In the financial year 2016/17 the
authority spent £7.997m on independent non-maintained specialist provision, an
increase of £0.348m from the 2015/16 spend level of £7.649m. The budget
overspent by £0.142m even allowing for a budget increase made in 2016/17 of
£0.595m to rebase the budget (discussed in the January 2016 Schools Forum).
The latest information for 2017/18 is highlighting a forecast of £8.048m; however
this is a provisional figure prior to year-end closedown.

Independent School placements in Lincolnshire
In addition to Out of County placements there are currently 42 children and young
people placed in independent schools in Lincolnshire. The nature of these
placements is complex but falls into 3 broad categories: parental preference where
the cost of the provision is such that it is the best value for money for the authority;
parental preference where parents pay general fees and the county funds the
higher needs costs or where maintained or academy schools have said they are
unable to meet need.
The cost in 2016/17 of these placements was £1.800m, which was a £0.527m
overspend on a budget of £1.273m. For 2017/18, the forecast is £1.254m; this is a
provisional figure prior to year-end closedown.
The detailed budget setting exercise that included the drawing out of savings has
the allowed the Local Authority to manage internally the high needs pressures
reported within the paper for 2017/18. Further details are contained within the
Section 251 Budget Statement 2017/18 report.

Page 28

Building Communities of Specialist Provision: A Collaborative Strategy for
Children and Young People with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities
(SEND) in Lincolnshire

As first reported to the Schools Forum in April 2015 a comprehensive review of
specialist provision in Lincolnshire was needed. The Special Schools' Project
Board, chaired by the Director of Children's Services, has championed this work.
The proposed strategy for the county was developed in partnership between the
Local Authority, the Special School Leaders and the LPCF. Some of the detailed
work was facilitated by the Staff College. It has been a truly collaborative process
over the last two years and the proposed strategy went to public consultation for
nine weeks between the 8th January and the 14th March 2018.

The Building Communities of Specialist Provision Strategy will enable Lincolnshire
pupils with SEND to access an integrated and collaborative all needs education
system which provides excellent education, health care and support interventions.
Details of the full strategy proposals are referenced in Background Papers.
The strategy will:
"Establish an integrated school system where children and young people get the
right health, care and education, in the right place, at the right time, as close as
possible to where they live."
The strategic vision of this integrated school system will provide the foundations
for:
"Provision without boundaries: where children feel they belong, are respected,
hopeful and optimistic about their future."
The strategy seeks to create an integrated education, health and care provision
which will:
a. Provide a local education system in which parents can have confidence that
their child's education, health and care needs can be met.
b. Ensure we have a sufficient supply of places in schools for pupils with SEND.
c. Provide local community special schools which can meet the needs of all pupils
in their community by removing the current barriers to access, particularly where
schools can only meet the needs of pupils with specific designations of disability.

Page 29

d. Reduce the travel time for pupils with SEND by enabling them to attend a
special school in their locality.
e. Develop a system which enables pupils with SEND to access a greater range of
mainstream curriculum and experiences.
f. Increase opportunities for pupils with SEND to transition to a mainstream setting,
if this is identified as most appropriate and beneficial.
g. Support pupils to access education close to their family and their community
thus reducing the number of pupils being educated in Out of County
placements/Independent Non-Maintained special schools.
h. Recognise the very specific needs of some pupils with hearing impairments,
where parental preference identifies the important of belonging with a British Sign
Language community and support pupils to access these arrangements, where
agreed through the SEND process.
i. Create and enhance relationships between special and mainstream schools so
pupils with SEND can remain in mainstream schooling.
j. Clarify and enhance health interventions across special schools, so all schools
can meet the health and therapeutic needs of the pupils in their communities.
k. Improve opportunities for special and mainstream teaching staff to share best
practice, skills and knowledge.
This strategy proposes to make significant changes to the existing specialist
education provision, creating an integrated system where pupils attend their
nearest school, confident that their educational and health needs can be fully met.
It aims to enable young people to be educated in their local communities where
they can learn in a flexible, integrated system which supports transition.

There were some key drivers behind the changes that are proposed including:


DfE High Needs Strategic Review



Sustainability and sufficiency



Mainstream opportunities and transition



Journey times for young people attending specialist



School condition and suitability



The impact of out of county placements on children and their families

Page 30



Young people with SEND having a sense of community and belonging

The DfE provided the authority with a grant of £283,911 to carry out a strategic
review of specialist provision. In addition the authority will receive £2,314,235 over
three years for capital investment to increase specialist provision. The funding from
the DfE does not support the significant changes to provision that are required.
Therefore the council has committed further funding, to support the capital
investment required to implement the strategic vision comprising:


Basic Needs Budget Boston - £5.2m



Basic Needs Budget Lincoln - £8.5m



Property Maintenance/Condition Budget - £24m.

The capital programme is extensive with the majority of Special Schools having
buildings re-modelled and new facilities added. A new Free School in Lincoln is
proposed and the John Fielding School in Boston will have a completely new build.
In addition the strategy proposes satellite hubs on mainstream school sites to
promote collaboration and flow between the two types of provision. The proposals,
if agreed, will be implemented over a 3 – 5 year timeframe.
Throughout the public consultation period a large number of stakeholders have
been consulted. The strategy was sent to approximately 750 interested parties;
letters were sent to parents and carers of all Special School pupils; all mainstream
schools were sent the consultation letter; all SENCo registered with the SEND
Service were sent the consultation details and there have been various media
releases, an on-line survey, a dedicated email box and telephone line. In addition
the Project Team has received and responded to a significant number of emails
and letters.
There have been:
o 19 Consultation Events
 13 Special School Consultations

3 Lincolnshire Parent Carer Forum Consultations

3 LCC Public Consultations
o Proposed strategy and consultation details shared with:
 Lincolnshire Learning Partnership Board
 Joint Forum Meeting – Children’s Services and Trade Union
representation
 6 Head Teacher briefings

Page 31

o Planning meeting with Health Commissioners and Health Providers
The collated feedback from the consultation is being included in a full report to the
Children and Young People's Scrutiny Committee on the 20th April 2018. The
outcome of that meeting will determine how the strategy progresses through both
the council's political and statutory processes and the Academies' processes with
the Regional Schools Commissioner. It is anticipated that there will be a final
decision made by the Executive Councillor, subject to the Regional Schools
Commissioner approval, by the 14th August 2018.

SEND Tribunal: Single Route of Redress National Trial
A 2-year national trial began on 3 April 2018, to extend the power of the SEND
Tribunal. As part of a special educational appeal, the SEND tribunal will be able to
make non-binding recommendations on the health and social care aspects of EHC
Plans.
The aim of the trail is that parents and young people are able to appeal to the
SEND Tribunal about decisions concerning EHC Needs Assessments and Plans.
To date, they have only been able to appeal about the special educational needs
and provision sections and the placement section of EHC plans. The trial gives
parents and young people new rights to request recommendations about the health
and social care needs and provision specified in EHC plans, in addition to the
educational aspects, when making a SEND appeal. This applies for all SEND
appeals apart from those that are only about carrying out an EHC needs
assessment.
The trial gives the Tribunal new powers to make non-binding recommendations on
the health and social care aspects of EHC plans. It gives parents and young
people the opportunity to raise all their concerns about an EHC plan in one place.
The policy aims of the national trial are to:
• create a more holistic, person-centred view of the child or young person’s
needs at the Tribunal
• bring appeal rights in line with the wider remit of EHC plans
• encourage joint working between education, health and social care
commissioners
• bring about positive benefits to children, young people and parents

Page 32

The trial will run for two years. Recommendations about health and social care
needs and/or provision can be made only on Local Authority decisions and EHC
plans issued or amended from 3 April 2018.
There has already been training delivered to those that will be most directly
involved in the new arrangements. Further training will be scheduled and
information will be provided through the SENCo briefings. There is also information
available on the Local Offer.
This is a significant change and the implications of the extended powers remain to
be seen.
The trial will be evaluated throughout the two year period by IFF Research and
Belmana.
Details of the full guidance are referenced in Background Papers.

Conclusion
The report illustrates the increasing number of young people aged 0 – 25 who
require a higher level of support with their additional needs. It also evidences the
increasing cost pressures on the authority in supporting the growing complexity of
need of young people in the county.
The report evidences the demand for specialist placements to support young
people. The proposed strategy for Special Schools in Lincolnshire aims to address
the capacity issues faced by the county and specifically seeks to address the
inequalities faced by young people with additional needs who currently travel far
greater distances than their peers who do not have SEND.
The extended powers of the SEND Tribunal are new and the effects and
implications will be reported on in due course.

Consultation
a) Have Risks and Impact Analysis been carried out??
No
b) Risks and Impact Analysis
Not applicable.

Page 33

Appendices
None
Background Papers
Document title
Guidance
on
Support (2018).

Where the document can be viewed
SEN https://search3.openobjects/mediamanager/lincolnshire
/fsd/files/sen_support_guidance_document_february_2
018.pdf
Building Communities of https://lincolnshire.gov.uk/Download/109855
Specialist Provision: A
Collaborative Strategy for
Children
and
Young
People
with
Special
Educational Needs and
Disabilities (SEND) in
Lincolnshire.
SEND Tribunal: Single https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/upload
Route
of
Redress s/attachment_data/file/686902/SEND_TribunalNational Trial.
single_route_of_redress_national_trial_guidance.pdf

This report was written by Sheridan Dodsworth, who can be contacted on 01522
553310 or sheridan.dodsworth@lincolnshire.gov.uk.

Page 34

Agenda Item 7

Regulatory and Other Committee
Open Report on behalf of Debbie Barnes, Executive Director of Children's
Services
Report to:

Lincolnshire Schools' Forum

Date:

19 April 2018

Subject:
Decision
Reference:
Key
decision?
Summary:

Annual Report for Early Years
No

The purposes of this report are to:
1. Present the Annual Report for Early Years
2. Provide information on the delivery and performance of Early Years and
Childcare across Lincolnshire.

Recommendation(s):
Schools Forum is asked to:
a. Note the content of the report, and
b. Agree the priorities for Early Years and Childcare for 2018/19.

Background
Early Years and Childcare Support (EYCC) continues to provide information,
support, challenge, and training opportunities to all early years and childcare
providers within Lincolnshire. This includes Schools, Pre-Schools, Nurseries,
Daycare Settings, Registered Childminders and Out of School Clubs; for the
benefit of this report these will be referred to as "providers". EYCC offers providers
access to effective support in order to deliver the requirements of the Early Years
Foundation Stage (EYFS) Framework and ensure there is sufficient provision. This
enables providers to effectively meet the needs of children and has a particular
emphasis on the most disadvantaged and vulnerable, in order to reduce
inequalities in child development, early education and promote the school
readiness agenda.
EYCC has responsibility for these six key areas of Early Years including the:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

funding and delivery of the Early Years Entitlements
provision of sufficient and sustainable early years and childcare
delivery of quality provision and educational outcomes for children (EYFS)
sector workforce, training and development
inclusion (SEN) funding, advice and support

Page 35

6. Partnership working in relation to school readiness including the quality and
delivery of Children's Centres
1) THE EARLY YEARS ENTITLEMENTS (EYE) FOR 2, 3 & 4 YEAR OLDS
Evidence shows that attending high quality early education has a lasting impact on
social and behavioural outcomes of young children. The entitlements make
childcare more accessible and affordable for parents and enables parents to
access training, work or increase their working hours if they wish to do so.
All three and four year olds are entitled to 15 hours a week of free early learning.
Take-up is currently at 95% nationally and at 97% in Lincolnshire. The greatest
change within the sector during 2017/18 was the introduction of the entitlement for
eligible families to 30 hours free childcare.

2 YEAR OLD EARLY EDUCATION ENTITLEMENT
The Department for Education (DfE) continued to invest in 2 year old free early
education places nationally for around 260,000 children.
Changes are being introduced to the eligibility criteria for families accessing
Universal Credit which will impact on the number of families eligible.
In Lincolnshire, we have seen a decrease in the number of children potentially
eligible based on the lists produced by the DWP. The list produced in November
2017, in anticipation of take-up in the spring term showed 2,655 families potentially
eligible.



In January 2018, Lincolnshire's take-up is at 72.5% with 1,925 children
accessing a funded place.
Take-up nationally is at 71% based on the Statistical First Release
published by the DfE in 2017.

The number of Early Years Providers delivering funded 2 year old places continues
to rise and there are currently 571 providers registered to deliver 2 year old places
in Lincolnshire which includes 28 schools and 261 childminders. This represents
87% of all providers delivering free education places to 3 and 4 year olds. EYCC is
continuing to build this offer to ensure high quality provision is available for all
eligible children in Lincolnshire. The DfE has commended the Local Authority’s
progress with the initiative.
A joined up approach to outreach has been developed between EYCC, the locality
teams and partners to ensure the most effective methods are used to support
families to access their child’s entitlement. EYCC also continues to work in
partnership with the Virtual School to ensure all Children Looked After (CLA) are
supported to access their 2 year old entitlement places from the time they turn 2
years of age, and this support continues up until statutory schools age.
Collaborative working arrangements are in place with the Virtual School’s to ensure
specific support is in place and children's educational needs are identified and
tracked within their Personal Education Plans (PEPs).

Page 36

EARLY YEARS PUPIL PREMIUM
This funding was introduced in April 2015, to build on the successful model of the
school-age Pupil Premium. Early Years Pupil Premium is additional funding for
Providers to improve the education they provide for disadvantaged 3 and 4 year
olds. Providers will receive up to an additional £302 a year for each eligible child.
This equates to an hourly rate of 53p per child per hour. Restrictions are not
imposed on how Providers spend the Early Years Pupil Premium; however Early
Years Improvement Advisors continue to support the sector promoting areas of
good practice. Ofsted are responsible for holding Providers to account for how they
have used the EYPP to support their disadvantaged children through the regular
inspection process.
In spring term 2018, children in PVI settings and additional children in schools
qualified for EYPP. This is significantly higher than the government has predicted
and on this basis the DfE have committed to review the delivery mechanism for
EYPP, this is to ensure appropriate levels of funding are allocated to Local
Authorities.
DISABILITY ACCESS FUNDING
From April 2017, 3 & 4 year olds were eligible for DAF if they met the following
criteria:
•
•

The child is in receipt of child Disability Living Allowance and;
The child receives free early education.

Four year olds in primary school reception classes are not eligible for DAF funding.
The settings of three and four year olds eligible for the DAF are entitled to receive
a one-off payment of £615 per year. The DAF is not based on an hourly rate and is
an additional entitlement. Children do not have to take up their full early year's
education they are entitled to in order to receive the DAF. Children in receipt of the
DAF will be eligible where they take-up any period of free entitlement. If a child
eligible for the DAF is splitting their free entitlement across two or more providers,
parents have been asked to nominate the setting they wish to receive this
additional funding.
In 2017-18, a total of 111 children have qualified for DAF in Lincolnshire. The local
authority continues to encourage childcare providers to seek parent's permission to
check eligibility for this additional funding to maximise take-up.
30 HOURS ENTITLEMENT
From September 2017, the extended entitlement to 30 hours free provision has
been introduced an additional 15 hours a week for working parents of three and
four year olds (on top of the universal entitlement of 15 hours a week for all three

Page 37

and four year olds). In the spring term 2018, 4,671 eligibility codes had been
issued to children in Lincolnshire.
Of these codes, 4,386 places were accessed in Lincolnshire this is 94% take-up.
Nationally, children in a 30 hours place as a percentage of codes issued is 89%.
Currently, 83% of childcare providers in Lincolnshire are offering the extended 30
hours entitlement. There are 670 providers registered to deliver funded places in
Lincolnshire, this includes 79 schools and 304 childminders, this demonstrates we
have a diverse market place which enables parents to access their extended
entitlement.
Lincolnshire submitted six capital bids to the DfE for a combination of new builds,
premises extensions and refurbishment projects to build capacity to meet demand.
Overall these projects yielded £1,594,138 of capital funding and will create 259
new 30 hour places across the county. These new places will become available
between September 2017 and September 2018 as the buildings complete.
To support the sustainable implementation of the 30 hours, these additional hours
are being funded at the revised universal hourly base rate. There is still an
unknown impact of how the introduction of 30 hours may affect the market place
when we reach the summer term 2018. Many parents may return to work or
increase their working hours based on this new offer and therefore the capacity
requirements could change, therefore the market place is being closely monitored.
The Local Authority has secured funding from the DfE through the delivery support
fund. This includes funding for a parental consultation which will be completed in
the summer term 2018 to establish if all eligible families in Lincolnshire who need a
30 hours place are able to access it. This will enable the local authority to develop
places where any further gaps are identified.
2) CHILDCARE SUFFICIENCY
With the implementation of the 30 hours from September 2017. Lincolnshire EYCC
delivered a number of free 1 day workshops aimed at the delivery of 30 hours and
how this could be provided to meet the needs of parents and minimise the impact
on the sustainability of provision. Providers have been supported to review their
capacity to meet the demand for the 30 hour places; some considerations have
included extending operation hours, expanding premises and auditing the numbers
of children already accessing more than the universal 15 hours.
There continues to be a significant number of newly registered Providers opening
up around the county each year. Some of these new registrations represent new
childcare businesses and thus new childcare places, whilst others have been as a
result of relocation, change of ownership or change of governance, which may or
may not have impacted on the number of places they are able to offer. In addition
to this, there has been a significant increase in the number of schools introducing
Early Years Provision. Since the introduction of the Small Business Enterprise Act
2015 we have seen an increase in the number of schools offering 2 year old places
in addition to the 3 and 4 year old places that they already offer.

Page 38

The development of 2 year old places has continued this year but there has been
an increased focus on the implementation of the 30 hours free childcare. EYCC
has given very clear messages around preserving and maintaining existing places
for the following groups; under 2's, disadvantaged two-year olds and the universal
15 hour places for 3 & 4 year olds. Some providers have already closed their baby
places to make way for 30 hour places and others have indicated that they may
have to reduce the number of two year old places offered. The team are working
with providers to minimise such losses. In recent years changes to the length of
maternity entitlement for parents has resulted in less demand for places for under
one's.
Changes to the Statutory Duty placed on Local Authorities in September 2014
means that all new early years providers are able to deliver the Early Years
Entitlement for 2, 3 and 4 year olds upon opening. This supports the Local
Authority to meet its Sufficiency Duty, however following a provider's first Ofsted
inspection, where a judgement of ‘Inadequate’ is published the Local Authority is
obliged to find alternative provision and withdraw funding, as soon as is
practicable. The Local Authority is required to consider the continuity of care for
children who are already receiving their funded entitlement, however funding will
not be administered for any new children starting at the provision. An improved
Ofsted inspection is required in order to offer additional funded places.
To mitigate this, a programme of support has been developed to give new
providers the best chance of achieving a good or better judgement at their next
inspection and thus maintaining a sufficient supply of funded childcare places.
There have been fewer closures and a steady number of new settings opening up
and overall the number of available places has increased. Some of the closures
resulted in the childcare businesses being taking over by new people and so these
places have remained available.
EYCC continues to deliver group briefing sessions for those wanting to register as
a Childminder. These are provided around the county in response to demand.
Once Childminders are registered with Ofsted they have access to a variety of
tools and resources to support their development via the EYCC web pages; it is not
possible with current resource levels to provide individual support on a one to one
basis to assist them to achieve a good or better Ofsted judgement at first
inspection. However, the team are currently developing network support sessions
delivered around the county by the Workforce consultant as part of encouraging a
sector led approach. Childminders will be invited to attend and will receive key
messages on how to attend a good or better judgement at first inspection. If the
outcome of the first inspection is less than good the team offer a support
programme similar to the one provided to Early Years Providers.
Those wanting to develop standalone out of school provision are supported with an
initial site visit and thereafter are supported remotely via telephone. Following
Ofsted registration out of school providers are supported via sector led support
models that are currently being developed and that new providers will be
encouraged to join or start their own. The Team have been keen to find ways of
supporting this sector as they will be able to be part of the 30 hour delivery by
partnering with other providers and wrapping around shorter days. As such these

Page 39

providers will be invited to attend the Leadership and Management Briefings as a
means of receiving key messages. A key driver for this is capacity within the
service and whilst legislation around out of school provision remains significantly
relaxed since September 2014 any out of school provider delivering the 30 hours
childcare will have to be registered on the Ofsted Early Year's Register which
attracts a routine inspection Those seeking to establish new early year’s provision
can request a visit from a Sector Support & Development Consultant.
3) QUALITY PROVISION / EDUCATIONAL OUTCOMES
EYFS PROFILE OUTCOMES
The Early Years Foundation Stage Profile (EYFSP) summarises and describes
children's attainment at the end of the EYFS. It is based on ongoing observation
and assessment in the three prime and four specific areas of learning and the three
learning characteristics.
A completed EYFS Profile consists of the attainment of each child assessed in
relation to the 17 Early Learning Goals (ELG) descriptors together with a short
narrative describing the child's three learning characteristics. For each ELG,
practitioners must judge whether a child is meeting the development expected at
the end of the Reception year (expected), exceeding this level (exceeding) or not
yet reaching this level (emerging).
In addition, the EYFS profile provides an accurate national data set relating to
levels of children’s development at the end of the EYFS. The DfE uses this to
monitor changes in levels of children’s development and the readiness for the next
phase in their education both nationally and locally. Children with a Good Level of
Development (GLD) are those achieving at least the expected level in all the
following areas of learning: communication and language; physical development;
personal, social and emotional development; literacy; and mathematics. All areas
of learning within the EYFS are important and to reflect this, the GLD measure is
supported by a measure of the average of the cohort’s total point score across all
the ELGs. This ensures that the attainment of all children across all ELGs is
captured.
2017 EYFS Profile data:




69.6% of children in Lincolnshire achieved a Good Level of Development,
0.9% lower than the national average of 70.5%. Girls outperformed boys in
Lincolnshire; 75.7% achieving a GLD compared to 63.8% the gap narrowed
from 13% in 2015 to 11.9% in 2016.
The average point score (supporting measure) in Lincolnshire was 34.5 in
line with National.

Data for disadvantaged cohorts was analysed in order to offer targeted Learning
and Development (CPD) to the Early Years Workforce.


For the Lowest attaining 20% of children, the national gap is 31.7%. At
30.7% the gap in Lincolnshire remains less than the national figure.

Page 40




For children eligible for Pupil premium the gap between them and their noneligible peers is 20% in Lincolnshire, compared to 17% nationally. The gap
widened in Lincolnshire for these children in 2017 by 1%.
For children with English as an Additional Language (EAL) the gap between
them and their English as a first language peers is 13% in Lincolnshire
compared to 8% nationally. The gap widened for these children in
Lincolnshire in 2017 by 1%.

Data analysis has been shared at district level with the Early Years Locality Teams
and Locality Education Teams. Head Teachers and Early Years Providers have
been informed through Spring Leadership Briefings. EYCC has met with Teaching
school representatives to provide data analysis at a countywide level. Joint
collaborative working has taken place with localities, nurseries and schools to
identify best practice when working with children eligible for Pupil Premium in their
first year of school.
Agreement trialling training was provided to schools based on analysis of the
Lincolnshire EYFSP outcomes in Autumn 2017 and Spring 2018 focussing on
Literacy and Numeracy Early Learning Goals. This year, Early Years moderation
events will also focus on these Goals, with standards discussions focussing on
cohort analysis including those children eligible for Pupil Premium. Training events
for NQTs, teachers new to the EYFS, and separate events for Head teachers and
senior leaders were provided to enable a clearer understanding of the Early Years
profile, quality assurance of judgements and data sets.
An evaluation and planning form is completed and submitted annually to the DfE
detailing the systems in place for early years moderation, to fulfil the statutory
arrangements for Local Authorities. The Early Years Improvement Advisers have
taken part in a range of Inter LA moderation activities, including a regional group
agreement trialling event in February 2017. This process has helped to ensure that
judgements are consistent and accurate nationally.
QUALITY OF PROVIDERS JUDGED BY OFSTED
There are targeted quality support programmes made available to Lincolnshire
early years and childcare providers with a ‘less than good’ Ofsted outcome, in line
with the Early Education and Childcare Statutory guidance for Local Authorities
(September 2014).
Building on the previous successful intervention model, EYCC continue to provide
bespoke support through the ‘Getting to Good’ programme for early years and
childcare providers (including Early Years Registered Childminders) with a
'Requires Improvement' Ofsted outcome. The Targeted Improvement Programme
that was introduced in September 2014 continues to provide intensive support and
monitoring for early years and childcare providers with an 'Inadequate' Ofsted
outcome. Providers can also self-refer into Early Years and Childcare for support if
they have identified they are at risk of getting a less than Good outcome at their
next inspection.

Page 41

In November 2017 Ofsted published its EYCC Statistics on overall effectiveness as
at August 31st 2017:


95% of Early Years and Childcare Providers in Lincolnshire achieved a
Good or Outstanding Judgement 2% higher than national.

Broken down into specific types of provision Childminders have increased to 94%
Good and Outstanding and Childcare on Non Domestic Premises have increased
to 96% Good and Outstanding. These all reflect an increase since the last quarter
report from Ofsted.
These outcomes are higher than Regional and National averages. This confirms
that Lincolnshire’s Private, Voluntary and Independent (PVI) early years providers
are continuing to build on their good practice and that the revised targeted model of
support from EYCC has enabled our resources to be utilised effectively to support
the sector.
Lincolnshire’s maintained Nursery Schools have continued to achieve very strong
Ofsted outcomes with three of the schools graded as ‘outstanding’ and the
remaining two schools graded as 'good'.
4) WORKFORCE AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
EYCC continue to support the development of the early years & childcare
workforce across Lincolnshire, to ensure that Managers/Leaders are able to drive
forward continual improvement and ultimately improve outcomes for children in
readiness for school. Growing and retaining a highly skilled workforce has been
recognised within the recently released Early Years Workforce Strategy as key in
supporting the delivery of outstanding practice.
The Lincolnshire online Early Years Training Directory provides a comprehensive
programme of statutory courses that assist the sector to meet the EYFS/Ofsted
requirements and to provide and maintain high quality provision. The training
includes a range of face to face events and e-learning modules to support the
learning styles of all users and ensure training is accessible.
The Childminder pre-registration briefing sessions continue to be successful in
preparing those new to the sector to be inspection & delivery ready, and
encouraging them to attend leadership and management meetings prepares them
with new legislation from the onset.
This year, in response to the sector needs, the workforce team rolled out a number
of 'hands on' sessions to support setting managers in the use of the Early Years
hub and the new data collection system for EYE. The trainer demonstrated how to
input children's data and how to submit a funding claim whilst the managers were
logged in to the live system to enable them to build confidence to completed it for
themselves in time for the next census return. Feedback from these sessions was
very positive and as a result it has been agreed to continue to hold these sessions
on a termly basis for any new managers.

Page 42

Safeguarding training continues to be commissioned with the LSCB. On reflection
that has proved to be a very effective way of getting the statutory training delivered
in a consistent way that is accessible for all learners. With a whole programme of
e-learning courses being available to every staff member it ensures everyone is
aware of their responsibilities and can speak / act with confidence as and when the
need arises.
Regular information sharing at the manager briefings enables the Workforce
Development Team to keep the sector abreast of imminent changes to legislation
and promote tools that have been created to support managers with developing
their staff teams in order to meet the requirements placed upon them within the
Statutory Framework for the Early Years Foundation Stage. The web based audit
tool continues to be developed after feedback from the sector, taking into account
their suggestions where a small change to the system would enhance how they will
use it to record and monitor training profiles of their staff.
The team continue to build links with local & national FE / HE Training Providers,
working in partnership to promote the graduate pathways that are open to the
sector, Hosting events locally to support training providers (with access to
government grants) to meet the workforce face to face. This has supported the
continued growth of the workforce throughout the year. The relationship with
regional partners has been beneficial in sharing information and supporting each
other to review and meet the requirements of the workforce strategy.
50 practitioners have now been sponsored to undertake the Level 3 Forest School
Training with Natural Choice Training Ltd. The impact of the training is clear to see
in the settings that have been involved to date. They have embraced the ethos and
as a result can evidence the outcomes on children's learning and development,
particularly successful with the boys and those with speech and language
difficulties, both were included in Lincolnshire's key priorities for early years. 20
supporting practitioners have been sponsored to undertake the level 2 forest
school in order to strengthen the forest school sessions that are taking place.
Ofsted have made comment in a number of reports recently on the benefits of the
forest school sessions that they have observed during inspections.
The emphasis on the skills of the managers in settings remains a key focus during
an Ofsted inspection; EYCC continue to commission a range of leadership training
that will support the skills, knowledge and confidence to improve the performance
of staff in this area. Courses in subjects such as supervisions, delegation of teams,
coaching and mentoring have all proved beneficial.
5) INCLUSION AND EARLY INTERVENTION
Inclusion support is now embedded with the Early Years Locality Teams with
guidance and support from the School Readiness Hub within EYCC to ensure
consistency and quality assurance. Early Years Specialist Teachers continue to
provide bespoke support to ensure that providers which are funded to deliver Early
Years Entitlement places are aware of their duties within the revised SEND Code
of Practice and are proactive in early identification and meeting the needs of all
children. The funding is co-ordinated and processed through the central team.

Page 43

The Early Years Inclusion Fund continues to enable early years providers to
enhance support for children with SEND. As part of Lincolnshire’s SEND Local
Offer, Early Years Inclusion Funding supports government strategy by enabling
early intervention and removing barriers to learning faced by children with special
educational needs. Inclusion funding is used by Early Years Providers to:



Improve outcomes for children with lower levels of SEND
Purchase specialist equipment

Since April 2017 this funding has provided 25 pieces of specialist equipment to
enable children with additional needs to access their early years entitlement. Since
April 2017 the number of children supported in the summer term 2017 (197), the
autumn 2017 (171 children) and spring term2018 (217).
The new pilot process for Inclusion Funding enables children with lower and
emerging SEND to access universal early years provision. A revision of the Early
Years Inclusion Fund took place in the Summer term of 2017 following the
implementation of the Early Years National Funding Formula. A pilot programme of
Early Years Inclusion Funding has been developed and is currently in place and
will be fully evaluated in preparation for a review process to be implemented by
July 1st to enable applications to be submitted for September 2018. As part of the
pilot of Lincolnshire's inclusion fund the Local Authority is consulting with early
years providers, parents and SEN specialists on how the SEN inclusion fund will
be allocated.
All early years providers are invited to attend SENCo network clusters, this
provides updates on statutory, national and local processes; so that the
understanding of the requirements is reviewed and there is provision of high quality
inclusive early years practice embedded across Lincolnshire. Summer and Autumn
SENCO networks have focussed on developing, consulting and implementing the
pilot Inclusion Fund process following the introduction of the EYSFF 2017. Multi
agency inputs have also been provided by Lincolnshire Parent Carer Forum,
Barnados (Cygnets) and The Working Together Team (Social Communication
Outreach) and key messages on working in partnership with parents, supporting
children with Social Emotional and Mental Health needs, implementing the
graduated approach within the SEND Code of Practice and transition support
planning have been delivered.
In partnership with the Working Together Team, an early years referral process has
been developed to enable support for children with social communication needs as
they transition into school. By February 2018 referrals had been made for over 25
children in early years settings, which are expected to increase before the end of
the referral period in May. The Working Together Team will complement the role of
the Early Years Specialist Teacher and provide continuity of support as the child
starts school in September.
Community Paediatricians have a duty to inform the Local Authority when they feel
a child may have special educational needs. On receipt of these notifications, Early
Years Specialist Teachers provide support to the early years provider to ensure the

Page 44

child's needs are being met through the graduated approach. This has now
extended into home visits for children who are not in early years settings. The
Early Years Specialist Teacher is able to explore educational options with the
parents/carers and signpost to support and provision available through the local
Children's Centre and eligibility for 2 year old funding.
Early Years and Childcare Support continue to have an integral role in
Lincolnshire’s implementation of the SEND Code of Practice: 0-25 years. An Early
Years representative participates in the weekly Hub meeting, where draft
Education, Health and Care Plans are considered. The early years sector is also
represented on the newly formed SEND steering group which provide strategic
oversight, leadership and accountability for developing the Lincolnshire SEND selfevaluation and implementing the SEND action plan, following participation in the
recent peer review, early years provision was recognised as a strength in early
identification, meeting the needs and improving outcomes for children with Special
Educational Needs and Disabilities.
The Lead Adviser for Improvement and Inclusion continues to work closely with the
SEND team to update and ensure Early Years processes are reviewed and reflect
the views of parents and the Early Years sector as part of Lincolnshire’s Local
Offer. The Lead Adviser and newly appointed Improvement Adviser for Inclusion
have also been part of the Council For Disabled children's Action Learning set to
ensure that Lincolnshire's early years inclusion processes are in line with statutory
duties and to share practice with other Local Authorities and Agencies.
6) PARTNERSHIP WORKING
EYCC is committed to working in partnership with locality teams and other
agencies across Lincolnshire to raise educational outcomes for young children.
There is close working with colleagues in the Early Years Locality Teams to
provide effect support and challenge to ensure that the most vulnerable children
are supported to access good quality early years and educational provision, with
the aim of narrowing the gap of attainment. In addition to this the team are working
with a range of professionals to improve pathways of intervention which will include
Health Visitors on the pathway for the integrated two year old review, and the
tracking systems for our most vulnerable children.
Continuing to work with the Virtual School and the Specialist Teaching Team, to
ensure the educational progress of Children Looked After is closely monitored and
informs appropriate intervention. Termly visits are carried out by Early Years
Specialist Teachers which will include completion of the WellComm Speech and
Language Assessment. This mirrors the support provided to schools by the
Specialist Teaching Team for Children Looked After in Key Stage 1. Working in
partnership with the Re-integration team, to provide support for children at risk of
exclusion to ensure a smooth transition into school for children who are showing
significant delay in managing feelings and behaviours.
In order to narrow the gap of attainment for children who have English as an
acquired language, work continues with the Early Years Locality Teams to embed
strategies providing opportunities to share good practice across the sector EYCC

Page 45

participate in regional groups in relation to a number of areas of interest including
moderation, school readiness and improvement outcomes for our most vulnerable
children.
BUDGETS
The DSG early years block funding supports 2, 3 and 4 year old provision. The
total budget is £40.576m for 2018-19 which includes additional funding 30 hours
implementation.
Total spending plan for 3 & 4 year old entitlement is £32.792m, which 95.49% (or
£31.312m) is passed-through to providers in the form of the local universal rate;
mandatory deprivation funding; inclusion fund; funding adjustments, and a
fluctuation contingency fund. Centrally retained funding for Direct Early Years
Services is £1.481m during 2018/19, which represents 4.51% of the budget
allocation.
The centrally retained budget is utilised to provide a range of support services
described within this report across the sector. This support was redesigned to meet
the reducing levels of resources available to Local Authorities and was
implemented in 2016. The support available includes direct face to face support;
the delivery and commissioning of training; information advice and guidance, and
special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) support to early years providers
across all sector e.g. PVI, childminders and schools.

Page 46

Conclusion
EYCC endeavours to maximise outcomes for Lincolnshire’s youngest children
through the delivery of varied early intervention strategies. To ensure that
sufficient, inclusive, quality provision is being delivered across the county and has
strong relationships across the sector.
The Service is well placed to support the early years sector in order to continue to
improve children’s outcomes, support inclusive practice, school readiness and
improve and maintain safeguarding practices within the county’s Early Help
strategy. It is requested that school forum support the 2018/19 priorities and core
business proposals set out within this report.

EYCC KEY PRIORITIES 18/19:











Provide support to Early Years Providers and Childminders to monitor take
up and support access to EYE for eligible children;
Work with the sector to support business planning and other tools to ensure
childcare provision is accessible and sustainable.
Support the sector to address any sufficiency gaps that arise as a direct or
indirect result of the implementation of the 30 hours entitlement;
Consult with the sector on the criteria and funding allocation of the
deprivation supplement to inform 2019/20 funding arrangements.
Gain further feedback on the implementation of the pilot of the inclusion
funding with a view to implementing the revised approach in July 2018 in
preparation for the new academic year;
Further embed joint working with health visiting teams to roll out an
integrated approach to the 2.5 year old mandatory development check;
Develop processes and procedures that support providers to access
monthly payment systems
Work in partnership with the Early Years Providers in Lincoln and Boston to
set up and develop the first Lincolnshire partnership hubs to strengthen
sector led support and the sufficiency of provision
Provide moderation of EYFS for 2018/19.
Continue to explore with partners a shared multi-professional understanding
of "school readiness";

The Schools Forum is asked to:
A. Note the contents of the report.
B. Consider and comment upon the contents of the report.

Page 47

Consultation
a) Have Risks and Impact Analysis been carried out??
No
b) Risks and Impact Analysis
N/A
Appendices
These are listed below and attached at the back of the report
Appendix A
N/A

Background Papers

Document title
Where the document can be viewed
Early
Years
National http://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s2094
Funding Formula
5/Early%20Years%20National%20Funding%20Formu
la.pdf
The
Annual
Report http://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s1876
2016/17 for Early Years 0/9.0%20Annual%20report%20Early%20Years.pdf
and Childcare Support
Early
Years
National http://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s1784
Funding Formula
0/Early%20Years%20National%20Funding%20Formu
la.pdf
Early
years
national https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/earlyfunding
formula: years-national-funding-formula-allocations-andallocations and guidance
guidance
Statutory Framework for https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/earlythe
Early
Years years-foundation-stage-framework--2
Foundation Stage
Early
Education
and https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/earlyChildcare
Statutory education-and-childcare--2
Guidance
for
Local
Authorities
Model Agreement: early https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/freeyears provision free of early-years-provision-and-childcare-model-agreement
charge
Early Years Entitlements: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/30Operational Guidance
hours-free-childcare-la-and-early-years-providerguide
30
hours
early https://www.gov.uk/government/news/thousands-ofimplementers
parents-benefit-from-30-hours-free-childcare-early

Page 48

Early years and Childcare https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/childcareinspections and outcomes providers-and-inspections-as-at-31-august-2017
Early Years Foundation https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/early-yearsStage Profile Outcomes
foundation-stage-profile-results-2015-to-2016

This report was written by Michelle Andrews, who can be contacted on 01522
553269 or michelle.andrews@lincolnshire.gov.uk.

Page 49

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8

Regulatory and Other Committee
Open Report on behalf of Debbie Barnes, Executive Director Children's
Services
Report to:

Lincolnshire Schools' Forum

Date:

19 April 2018

Subject:
Decision
Reference:
Key
decision?
Summary:

Team Around the Child (TAC)
No

The purpose of this report is to provide an update on Team Around the Child
(TAC) in Lincolnshire, in particular feedback from schools and academies.

Recommendation(s):
1) note the contents of the report.
2) Schools Forum to give direction as to whether they require ongoing direct
reports; or circulation of detailed Annual Reports for information only.

Background
Team Around the Child (TAC) is Lincolnshire's multi-agency arrangements for the
provision of Early Help to children, young people and their families. Each TAC has
a Lead Professional responsible for co-ordination of a plan of support.
Schools' Forum, in partnership with Lincolnshire County Council, has funded
Lincolnshire's TAC Team since April 2014. During this time significant
improvements have been made in the support available to Lead Professionals
across the County; in particular those working in Schools and Academies.
The TAC Team consist of TAC Administrators and Early Help Consultants, who
provide advice, support, training and guidance to all agencies working with children
and families in Lincolnshire; and an enhanced offer, including case supervisions to
Lincolnshire schools and academies.
The TAC Team provide detailed Annual Reports, by June of each year, to all
stakeholders.

Page 51

Update
Data
As at 31st March 2018, there were 2047 TACs open across the County. Of these,
879 were led by primary schools, 473 by secondary schools, and 106 by Special
Schools.
More details will be available in the Annual Report.
Feedback
In February 2018, Lead Professionals were asked for feedback on the services
provided by the TAC Team. We received 104 responses. Responses were
positive, and gave broad assurance that the services provided are relevant and
effective. Schools and Academies that had used the case supervision provision
were asked to scale the quality of the support on a scale of 0 to 10, where 10 was
extremely useful, and 0 was not at all useful. The results are as follows:
Scale of 0-4 = 0
Scale of 5-6 = 4
Scale of 7-8 = 12
Scale of 9-10 = 21
The mean scale point was 8.5
Update on priorities
The most significant development within the last year has been the increased use
of Signs of Safety methodology within TAC. This is being shown to increase the
effectiveness of TACs, and corresponding improvement in outcomes for children
and young people.
Lead Professionals within educational settings are reporting, and demonstrating,
increased confidence in the approach, and are requesting more development
opportunities. Schools and academies are sharing their good practice about what
works well; and are taking a proactive approach within TAC Forums.
We have provided opportunities for schools and academies to access LCC
Children's Services training programme, and this has been well-received.
Priorities for the coming year
 Build upon the skills of sector-led champions, and share their good practice.
 Further roll out the Signs of Safety Group Supervision model, to support
continued practice development.
 Increase provision of quality assurance visits, and identify and address key
themes for development.
 Offer additional free training opportunities to Lead Professionals within
schools and academies

Page 52

Consultation
a) Have Risks and Impact Analysis been carried out?
N/A
b) Risks and Impact Analysis
N/A
Appendices
These are listed below and attached at the back of the report
Appendix A
None

Background Papers

Document title
None

Where the document can be viewed

This report was written by Paula Whitehead, who can be contacted on
07909535868 or paula.whitehead@lincolnshire.gov.uk.

Page 53

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9

Regulatory and Other Committee
Open Report on behalf Debbie Barnes, Executive Director of Children's
Services
Report to:

Lincolnshire Schools' Forum

Date:

19 April 2018

Subject:
Decision
Reference:
Key
decision?
Summary:

Academies and Trust Update
No

The purpose of this report is to provide information on the latest number of
academies, pupils in academies and academy trusts.

Recommendation(s):
The Schools Forum is asked to note the contents of the report.

Background
The Schools Forum asked for an update to be provided to each meeting on the number of
academy conversions.
This is the position as at the 1st March 2018. The pupil figures are based on the January
2018 census data (i.e. the latest published). The national academy trust data is the latest
available from Get information about schools.
Since the effective date of the last report (1st December 2017), there have been four
academy conversions of primary schools. These were Waddington All Saints Primary
School which joined L.E.A.D. Multi-Academy Trust, Coningsby St Michael's Church of
England Primary School which joined Lincoln Anglican Academy Trust, Bassingham
Primary School which joined Aspire Schools Trust and Chapel St Leonards Primary School
which is now sponsored by Community Inclusive Trust. These conversions bring the total
number of primary academies to 87 (31.1%) and the total number of pupils attending
primary academies to 23,289 (40.6%).
The total number of academies is now 154 (42.5%) educating 67,504 pupils (63.9%).
Current Status of All Lincolnshire State Schools
Schools
Nursery
All
Maintained
Academy

FTE
5
5
0

100.0%
0.0%

Page 55

501
501
0

100.0%
0.0%

Primary
All
Maintained
Academy

280
193
87

68.9%
31.1%

57,421
34,132
23,289

59.4%
40.6%

Secondary
All
Maintained
Academy

55
3
52

5.5%
94.5%

45,782
2,796
42,986

6.1%
93.9%

Special
All
Maintained
Academy

21
7
14

33.3%
66.7%

1,872
696
1,176

37.2%
62.8%

PRU
All
Maintained
Academy

1
0
1

0.0%
100.0%

53
0
53

0.0%
100.0%

Total
All
Maintained
Academy

362
208
154

57.5%
42.5%

105,629
38,125
67,504

36.1%
63.9%

By 1st September 2018, if conversions and sponsored conversions proceed according to
their current target dates the position will be:
Projected Six Month Status of All Lincolnshire State Schools
Schools

FTE

Nursery
All
Maintained
Academy

5
5
0

Primary
All
Maintained
Academy

100.0%
0.0%

501
501
0

100.0%
0.0%

281
186
95

66.2%
33.8%

57,421
32,823
24,598

57.2%
42.8%

Secondary
All
Maintained
Academy

55
3
52

5.5%
94.5%

45,782
2,796
42,986

6.1%
93.9%

Special
All

21

Page 56

1,872

Maintained
Academy

7
14

PRU
All
Maintained
Academy

1
0
1

Total
All
Maintained
Academy

363
201
162

33.3%
66.7%

696
1,176

37.2%
62.8%

0.0%
100.0%

53
53
0

100.0%
0.0%

55.4%
44.6%

105,629
36,869
68,760

34.9%
65.1%

Tattershall Holy Trinity Church of England Primary School intends to join the Lincoln
Anglican Academy Trust on 1st April 2018. On the 1st July 2018, Boston Saint Mary's R.C.
Primary School, Grantham St Mary's Catholic Primary School and Spalding Saint Norbert's
Catholic Primary School will join the St Therese of Lisieux CMAT (the new name for St
Gilbert of Sempringham Academies Trust) and Cherry Willingham Primary School and
Waddington Redwood Primary School will join the The Priory Federation of Academies on
1st September 2018. Also on 1st September 2018, Holbeach Bank Primary School will
become sponsored by The Lincolnshire Educational Trust Limited and the new Free
School, Grantham Poplar Farm School, will open as part of Community Inclusive Trust.
This will mean that 95 (33.8%) primary schools will be academies educating 24,598
(42.8%) of the primary aged pupils.
The total number of all academies will rise to 162 (44.6%) and 68,760 (65.1%) pupils will
attend those academies.
Below is a list of the academy trusts that currently have the greatest number of academies
in Lincolnshire.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

Lincoln Anglican Academy Trust
Community Inclusive Trust
The Boston Witham Academies Federation
The David Ross Education Trust
The Priory Federation of Academies
Greenwood Academies Trust
CFBT Schools Trust
St Gilbert of Sempringham Academies Trust
Tollbar Multi Academy Trust
L.E.A.D. Multi-Academy Trust
Tall Oaks Academy Trust Ltd
The Lincolnshire Educational Trust Limited

Total
11
9
8
8
7
6
5
5
4
3
3
3

There are thirty-five active multi-academy trusts within Lincolnshire and a total of 106
Lincolnshire academies that are members of multi-academy trusts. This represents 68.8%
of all Lincolnshire Academies. Forty-eight (31.2%) of Lincolnshire academies are not
members of multi-academy trusts. Eleven multi-academy trusts have just one Lincolnshire

Page 57

academy as a member; four of these are single Lincolnshire academy multi-academy
trusts. The other seven also have academies that are not within Lincolnshire. Twelve
multi-academy trusts have two academies; ten of these trusts are currently based entirely
within Lincolnshire.
The largest academy trusts nationally that operate within Lincolnshire are Academies
Enterprise Trust (58 Academies, two in Lincolnshire), The David Ross Education Trust (34
Academies, eight in Lincolnshire), Greenwood Academies Trust (32 Academies, six in
Lincolnshire) and The Enquire Learning Trust (27 Academies, one in Lincolnshire). The
next largest is L.E.A.D. Multi-Academy Trust which has 19 Academies nationally, three of
which are in Lincolnshire.

Consultation
a) Have Risks and Impact Analysis been carried out??
No
b) Risks and Impact Analysis
N/A

Background Papers

This report was written by Adrian Clarke, who can be contacted on 01522 553216
or adrian.clarke@lincolnshire.gov.uk.

Page 58

Agenda Item 10
Lincolnshire Schools' Forum Work Programme
April 2018
Annual report on Special
Educational Needs

Sheridan Dodsworth

To receive an annual report
on Special Educational
Needs

Annual report on Early Years

Michelle Andrews

To receive an annual report
on the Early Years' Service

Team Around the Child in
Lincolnshire

Paula Whitehead

To receive an update on the
Team Around the Child

Academies Update

John O'Connor

To provide the Schools'
Forum with an update on the
latest position regarding the
number of Maintained
Schools and Academies and
the pupils in them

Lincolnshire Schools' Forum
– Work Programme

Katrina Cope

To provide the Schools'
Forum with an opportunity to
discuss potential items for
future meetings, which will
be subsequently, included on
the Work Programme

Page 59

June 2018
Section 251 Budget
Statement 2018/19

Elizabeth Bowes

To provide an update to the
Schools' Forum regarding
the Budget Statement for
2018/19

School Funding Update

Mark Popplewell

To provide an update on
school funding arrangements

Outreach Service report

Mary Meredith

To provide an update on the
Outreach Commissioned
services

Schools Broadband Services

t.b.c

To receive an update on the
Schools Broadband Services
post October 2019

Academies Update

John O'Connor

To provide the Schools'
Forum with an update on the
latest position regarding the
number of Maintained
Schools and Academies and
the pupils in them

Lincolnshire Schools' Forum
– Work Programme

Katrina Cope

To provide the Schools'
Forum with an opportunity to
discuss potential items for
future meetings, which will
be subsequently, included on
the Work Programme

Page 60

October 2018
National funding formula for
Schools – update for
2019/20

Mark Popplewell

To provide the Schools'
Forum with an update on the
mainstream school funding

Early Years National funding
Formula

Mark Popplewell / Michelle
Andrews

To provide the Schools'
Forum with an update on the
proposed 2019/20 funding
formula following provider
consultation (e.g. deprivation
funding).

De-delegation of Maintained
Primary Schools Budgets

Mark Popplewell

To seek approval from the
maintained primary school
representatives approval to
the Local authority's
proposals

Revised Schools Budgets
2018/19

Mark Popplewell

To provide information on
the revised Schools Budget
for 2018/19 and to seek
support for the proposed use
of the DSG underspend

Alternative Provision
Arrangements

Mary Meredith

To provide an update on how
alternative provision
arrangements are working

Academies Update

John O'Connor

To provide the Schools'
Forum with an update on the
latest position regarding the
number of Maintained
Schools and Academies and
the number pupils in them

Lincolnshire Schools' Forum
– Work Programme

Katrina Cope

To provide the Schools'
Forum with an opportunity to
discuss potential items for
future meetings, which will
be subsequently, included on
the Work Programme

Future Meeting Dates

Katrina Cope

For the Schools Forum to
agree their future meeting
dates

Page 61

This page is intentionally left blank

